

# **Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985**

No. 27, 1985

## **Compilation No. 9**

Compilation date:	5 March 2016
Includes amendments up to:	Act No. 145, 2015
Registered:	22 April 2016

This compilation includes commenced amendments made by Act No. 126, 2015.

Prepared by the Office of Parliamentary Counsel, Canberra

## About this compilation

#### This compilation

This is a compilation of the *Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act* 1985 that shows the text of the law as amended and in force on 5 March 2016 (the *compilation date*).

The notes at the end of this compilation (the *endnotes*) include information about amending laws and the amendment history of provisions of the compiled law.

#### **Uncommenced amendments**

The effect of uncommenced amendments is not shown in the text of the compiled law. Any uncommenced amendments affecting the law are accessible on the Legislation Register (www.legislation.gov.au). The details of amendments made up to, but not commenced at, the compilation date are underlined in the endnotes. For more information on any uncommenced amendments, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law.

# Application, saving and transitional provisions for provisions and amendments

If the operation of a provision or amendment of the compiled law is affected by an application, saving or transitional provision that is not included in this compilation, details are included in the endnotes.

#### **Editorial changes**

For more information about any editorial changes made in this compilation, see the endnotes.

#### Modifications

If the compiled law is modified by another law, the compiled law operates as modified but the modification does not amend the text of the law. Accordingly, this compilation does not show the text of the compiled law as modified. For more information on any modifications, see the series page on the Legislation Register for the compiled law.

#### **Self-repealing provisions**

If a provision of the compiled law has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law, details are included in the endnotes.

## Contents

1 Short title	
2 Commencement1	
3 Interpretation1	
3A Provision of export inspection services	
3B Act binds the Crown	
3C Application of the Criminal Code4	
4 When charge due for payment4	
5 Manner of payment4	
6 Returns in respect of quantity charge4	
6A Returns in respect of service charge	
7 Execution and lodgment of returns	
8 Authorised agents	
9 Records to be kept	
10 Offences relating to returns etc	
11 Penalty for non-payment7	
12 Export permits not to be granted if charge unpaid	
12A Withdrawal of services	
13 Recovery of charge	
14 Appointment of authorised persons9	
15 Access to premises9	
16 Reconsideration and review of decisions11	
16A Powers to make export control orders imposing fees not affected	
by charge	
16B Delegation by Secretary	
17 Regulations	
Endnotes 14	
Endnote 1—About the endnotes 14	
Endnote 2—Abbreviation key 16	
Endnote 3—Legislation history 17	
Endnote 4—Amendment history 19	

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

i

An Act to make provision for the collection of the charges imposed by the Export Inspection (Establishment Registration Charges) Act 1985, the Export Inspection (Quantity Charge) Act 1985, the Export Inspection (Service Charge) Act 1985 and the Domestic Meat Premises Charge Act 1993

#### 1 Short title

This Act may be cited as the *Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985*.

#### 2 Commencement

This Act shall come into operation on 1 July 1985.

#### **3** Interpretation

(1) In this Act, unless the contrary intention appears:

*animal* means any member, alive or dead, of the animal kingdom (other than a human).

*authorised agent* means the person appointed by a person under subsection 8(1) to be the authorised agent of the last-mentioned person.

*authorised officer* has the same meaning as in the *Export Control Act 1982*.

*authorised person* means a person who is, by virtue of an appointment made under section 14, an authorised person for the purposes of the provision in which the expression appears.

*charge* means:

- (a) establishment registration charge; or
- (b) quantity charge; or
- (c) service charge; or

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

(d) domestic meat premises charge.

*domestic meat premises charge* means a charge imposed by the *Domestic Meat Premises Charge Act 1993*.

*establishment* means an establishment that is registered for operations associated with the preparation of prescribed goods.

establishment registration charge means a charge imposed by the *Export Inspection (Establishment Registration Charges) Act 1985.* 

*export control orders* means orders or regulations made under the *Export Control Act 1982*.

*export permit* means a permit of that name provision for the granting of which is made for the purposes of section 7 of the *Export Control Act 1982* in export control orders.

*exporter*, of prescribed goods, means the person in whose name an export permit in respect of the prescribed goods is granted.

*external export inspection service* means an export inspection service that is provided at a place other than an establishment.

*killing or processing plant* has the same meaning as in the *Domestic Meat Premises Charge Act 1993*.

*preparation*, in relation to prescribed goods, includes:

- (a) the slaughter or killing of animals, or the dressing of carcases, from which prescribed goods are obtained;
- (b) the processing, packing or storage of prescribed goods;
- (c) the treatment of prescribed goods; or
- (d) the handling or loading of prescribed goods.

*prescribed goods* has the same meaning as in the *Export Control Act 1982*.

*prescribed office* means an office of the Department, being an office that is prescribed for the purposes of this Act.

*quantity charge* means the charge imposed by the *Export Inspection (Quantity Charge) Act 1985.* 

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

2

Compilation date: 5/3/16

*registered occupier*, in relation to an establishment, means the person in whose name the establishment is registered.

*requester*, in relation to an external export inspection service, means the person who requested the service.

Secretary means the Secretary of the Department.

*service charge* means the charge imposed by the *Export Inspection* (Service Charge) Act 1985.

(2) A reference in this Act to the registration of an establishment is a reference to the registration of an establishment in accordance with export control orders and includes a reference to the renewal of the registration of an establishment in accordance with export control orders.

#### 3A Provision of export inspection services

- (1) For the purposes of this Act, but subject to this section:
  - (a) where an authorised officer attends an establishment in connection with the *Export Control Act 1982* or export control orders, an export inspection service shall be taken to have been provided at the establishment during the attendance; and
  - (b) where, at the request of a person, an authorised officer attends a place (other than an establishment):
    - (i) in connection with the *Export Control Act 1982* or export control orders; and
    - (ii) in relation to prescribed goods;

an export inspection service shall be taken to have been provided at that place, during the attendance, in relation to the prescribed goods.

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to an attendance if the attendance is of a kind declared by the regulations to be an attendance to which this section does not apply.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

#### **3B** Act binds the Crown

This Act binds the Crown in right of each of the States, of the Australian Capital Territory, of the Northern Territory and of Norfolk Island.

#### **3C** Application of the *Criminal Code*

Chapter 2 of the *Criminal Code* applies to all offences against this Act.

Note: Chapter 2 of the *Criminal Code* sets out the general principles of criminal responsibility.

#### 4 When charge due for payment

Amounts of charge are due for payment as required by the regulations.

#### 5 Manner of payment

- (1) The payment of an amount of quantity charge on prescribed goods in respect of which an export permit is granted shall be made at the prescribed office at which the return referred to in section 6 relating to the prescribed goods is lodged.
- (2) The payment of an amount of service charge in respect of the provision of an export inspection service shall be made at the prescribed office at which the return referred to in section 6A relating to the service is lodged.
- (3) The payment of an amount of establishment registration charge may be made at any prescribed office.
- (4) The payment of an amount of domestic meat premises charge may be made at any prescribed office.

#### 6 Returns in respect of quantity charge

The exporter of prescribed goods in respect of which quantity charge is imposed must give the Secretary a return:

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

4

Compilation date: 5/3/16

- (a) for each month in which export permits are granted in respect of the prescribed goods; and
- (b) that contains the particulars prescribed by the regulations.

#### 6A Returns in respect of service charge

- (1) If service charge is imposed on the provision of an export inspection service at an establishment, the registered occupier of the establishment must give the Secretary a return:
  - (a) for each month in which the service is so provided; and
  - (b) that contains the particulars prescribed by the regulations.
- (2) A person requesting the provision of an external export inspection service in respect of which service charge is imposed must give the Secretary a return:
  - (a) for each month in which the service is so provided; and
  - (b) that contains the particulars prescribed by the regulations.

#### 7 Execution and lodgment of returns

Returns under sections 6 and 6A shall be signed, and submitted to the Secretary, as required by the regulations.

#### 8 Authorised agents

- (1) A person who is required to provide a return to the Secretary under section 6 or 6A, may, by writing, appoint a person to be the first-mentioned person's authorised agent for the purpose of signing that return.
- (2) The instrument of appointment of an authorised agent:
  - (a) shall be in accordance with the prescribed form; and
  - (b) when completed, shall be lodged at the prescribed office, or at each prescribed office, at which returns of the person who appointed the agent are to be lodged.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

#### 9 Records to be kept

(1) An exporter of prescribed goods must, in respect of each export permit granted to the exporter in relation to the prescribed goods, keep, or cause to be kept, such records as will enable the exporter to prepare such returns as are required to be provided by the exporter under section 6.

Penalty:

- (a) in the case of a natural person—\$1,000; or
- (b) in the case of a body corporate—\$5,000.
- (1A) A person shall keep, or cause to be kept, such records as will enable the person to prepare such returns as are required to be provided by the person under section 6A.

Penalty:

- (a) in the case of a natural person—\$1,000; or
- (b) in the case of a body corporate—\$5,000.
- (2) Records kept pursuant to subsection (1) or (1A) in relation to the grant of an export permit or the provision of an export inspection service shall be retained by the exporter, the registered occupier or the requester, as the case requires, for a period of 3 years from the date on which the export permit was granted or the export inspection service was provided, as the case may be.

Penalty:

- (a) in the case of a natural person—\$1,000; or
- (b) in the case of a body corporate—\$5,000.
- (3) An offence under this section is an offence of strict liability.

Note: For strict liability, see section 6.1 of the *Criminal Code*.

#### 10 Offences relating to returns etc.

(1) A person shall not refuse or fail to submit a return or provide information that is required by or under this Act or the regulations to be submitted or provided.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

6

Compilation date: 5/3/16

- (1A) Subsection (1) does not apply if the person has a reasonable excuse.
  - Note: The defendant bears an evidential burden in relation to the matter in subsection (1A). See subsection 13.3(3) of the *Criminal Code*.
- (1B) An offence under subsection (1) is an offence of strict liability.

Note: For strict liability, see section 6.1 of the *Criminal Code*.

- (2) A person is not excused from submitting a return or providing information that the person is required by or under this Act or the regulations to submit or provide on the ground that the return or information might tend to incriminate the person, but any return or information so submitted or provided is not admissible in evidence against the person in:
  - (a) criminal proceedings other than proceedings for an offence against subsection (1) of this section or an offence against section 137.1 or 137.2 of the *Criminal Code* that relates to this Act; or
  - (b) proceedings for recovery of a penalty payable under section 11.

Penalty:

- (a) in the case of a natural person—\$1,000 or imprisonment for 6 months, or both; or
- (b) in the case of a body corporate—\$5,000.

#### 11 Penalty for non-payment

- (1) Where the liability of a person to pay any charge is not discharged on or before the day on which the charge is due for payment, there is payable by that person to the Commonwealth by way of penalty, in addition to that charge, an amount calculated at the rate of 20% per annum upon that charge or upon such part of that charge as from time to time remains unpaid, to be computed from the time when that charge became due for payment.
- (2) The Minister or, subject to subsection (3), an authorised person may, in a particular case, for a reason that the Minister or the authorised person, as the case may be, in his or her discretion,

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

thinks sufficient, remit the whole or a part of an amount payable under this section.

(3) The power under subsection (2) to remit the whole or a part of an amount payable under this section shall not be exercised by an authorised person in a case where the amount payable before any remission exceeds the prescribed amount.

#### 12 Export permits not to be granted if charge unpaid

- (1) Where:
  - (a) an export permit has been granted to a person in respect of prescribed goods; and
  - (b) the person has not paid the amount of the quantity charge required to be paid in respect of the prescribed goods by the day on which that amount is required, under section 4, to be paid;

no further export permit shall be granted to the person until that amount of charge, and the penalty (if any) payable in respect of the late payment of that amount, has been paid in full.

(2) Where a person has not paid the amount of any establishment registration charge or service charge by the day on which that amount is required, under section 4, to be paid, no export permit shall be granted to the person until that amount of charge, and the penalty (if any) payable in respect of the late payment of that charge, has been paid in full.

#### 12A Withdrawal of services

- (1) If the amount of any domestic meat premises charge has not been paid by the day on which it is required to be paid, the Secretary may issue a direction under subsection (2).
- (2) The Secretary may, in writing, direct that specified services under:(a) the *Meat Inspection Act 1983*; or
  - (b) regulations or orders made under that Act;

are not to be provided, in relation to the killing or processing plant in respect of which the charge has not been paid, by authorised officers within the meaning of that Act.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

8

Compilation date: 5/3/16

(3) Despite anything in the *Meat Inspection Act 1983*, the authorised officers must comply with any direction that is in force.

#### 13 Recovery of charge

The following amounts may be recovered by the Commonwealth as debts due to the Commonwealth:

- (a) an amount of charge that is due for payment;
- (b) an amount payable by way of penalty under section 11.

#### 14 Appointment of authorised persons

The Secretary may, by writing signed by the Secretary, appoint a person to be an authorised person, or persons included in a class of persons to be authorised persons, for the purposes of a specified provision of this Act.

#### 15 Access to premises

- (1) An authorised person may, with the consent of the occupier of any premises, enter those premises for the purpose of performing the functions of an authorised person under this section.
- (2) Where an authorised person has reason to believe that there are on any premises examinable documents, the authorised person may make an application to a Justice of the Peace for a warrant authorising the authorised person to enter the premises for the purpose of performing the functions of an authorised person under this section.
- (3) If, on an application under subsection (2), the Justice of the Peace is satisfied, by information on oath or affirmation, that:
  - (a) there is reasonable ground for believing that there are on the premises examinable documents; and
  - (b) the issue of the warrant is reasonably required for the purposes of this Act;

the Justice of the Peace may issue a warrant authorising the authorised person, with such assistance as the authorised person thinks necessary, to enter the premises during such hours of the day or night as the warrant specifies or, if the warrant so specifies, at

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

any time, if necessary by force, for the purpose of performing the functions of an authorised person under this section.

- (4) A Justice of the Peace shall not issue a warrant under subsection (3) unless:
  - (a) an affidavit has been provided to the Justice of the Peace setting out the grounds on which the issue of the warrant is being sought; and
  - (b) the applicant or some other person has given to the Justice of the Peace, either orally or by affidavit, such further information (if any) as the Justice of the Peace requires concerning the grounds on which the issue of the warrant is being sought.
- (5) Where a Justice of the Peace issues a warrant under subsection (3), the Justice of the Peace shall specify in writing which of the grounds specified in the affidavit provided in accordance with subsection (4) the Justice of the Peace has relied on to justify the issue of the warrant and particulars of any other grounds relied on by the Justice of the Peace to justify the issue of the warrant.
- (6) A warrant issued under subsection (3) shall specify a day, not being a day later than one month after the day of issue of the warrant, upon which the warrant ceases to have effect.
- (7) Where an authorised person has entered any premises pursuant to subsection (1) or pursuant to a warrant issued under subsection (3), the authorised person may perform the functions of an authorised person under this section.
- (8) A person shall not obstruct or hinder an authorised person acting pursuant to subsection (1) or (7) or pursuant to a warrant issued under subsection (3).

Penalty: \$1,000 or imprisonment for 6 months, or both.

(8A) Subsection (8) does not apply if the person has a reasonable excuse.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

10

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Note: The defendant bears an evidential burden in relation to the matter in subsection (8A). See subsection 13.3(3) of the *Criminal Code*.

(8B) In subsection (8), strict liability applies to the physical element of circumstance, that the authorised person is acting pursuant to subsection (1) or (7) or to a warrant issued under subsection (3).

Note: For strict liability, see section 6.1 of the *Criminal Code*.

- (9) The functions of an authorised person under this section are to search for, inspect, take extracts from, and make copies of, any examinable documents for the purpose of ascertaining whether the provisions of this Act, and the regulations made under this Act, have been or are being complied with.
- (10) In this section:

*examinable documents* mean any documents relating to the provision of an export inspection service, to the granting of an export permit, or to the submission of a return under this Act.

*occupier*, in relation to premises, includes the person in charge of the premises.

#### 16 Reconsideration and review of decisions

(1) In this section, unless the contrary intention appears:

*decision* has the same meaning as in the *Administrative Appeals Tribunal Act 1975*.

#### relevant decision means:

- (a) a decision of an authorised person under subsection 11(2); or
- (b) a decision of the Secretary under section 12A.

#### reviewable decision means:

- (a) a decision of the Minister under subsection 11(2); or
- (b) a decision of the Minister under subsection (4) of this section.
- (2) A person affected by a relevant decision who is dissatisfied with the decision may, within 21 days after the day on which the decision first comes to the notice of the person, or within such further period as the Minister (either before or after the expiration of that period), by notice in writing served on the person, allows,

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

by notice in writing given to the Minister, request the Minister to reconsider the decision.

- (3) There shall be set out in the request the reasons for making the request.
- (4) The Minister shall, within 45 days after the receipt of the request, reconsider the relevant decision and may make a decision:
  - (a) in substitution for the relevant decision whether in the same terms as the relevant decision or not; or
  - (b) revoking the relevant decision.
- (5) Where, as a result of a reconsideration under subsection (4), the Minister makes a decision in substitution for or revoking the relevant decision, the Minister shall, by notice in writing served, either personally or by post, on the person who made the request under subsection (2) for the reconsideration, inform the person of the result of the reconsideration, set out findings on material questions of fact, refer to the evidence or other material on which those findings were based and give the reasons for his or her decision.
- (6) An application may be made to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal for a review of a reviewable decision.
- (7) Where a relevant decision is made and the person who made the relevant decision gives to a person whose interests are affected by the decision notice in writing of the making of the decision, that notice shall include a statement to the effect that a person affected by the decision:
  - (a) may, if the person is dissatisfied with the decision, seek a reconsideration of the decision by the Minister in accordance with subsection (2); and
  - (b) may, subject to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal Act 1975, if the person is dissatisfied with a decision of the Minister upon that reconsideration, make application to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal for review of that decision.
- (8) Where the Minister makes a reviewable decision and gives to a person whose interests are affected by the decision notice in writing of the making of the decision, that notice shall include a

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

12

Compilation date: 5/3/16

statement to the effect that, subject to the *Administrative Appeals Tribunal Act 1975*, application may be made to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal for review of the decision to which the notice relates by or on behalf of a person whose interests are affected by the decision.

(9) Any failure to comply with the requirements of subsection (7) or(8) in relation to a decision does not affect the validity of the decision.

#### 16A Powers to make export control orders imposing fees not affected by charge

The imposition of charge does not affect the power to make export control orders relating to the imposition of fees in connection with the performance of services by authorised officers.

#### **16B Delegation by Secretary**

The Secretary may delegate, in writing, the Secretary's power under section 12A to an SES employee, or acting SES employee, in the Department.

#### **17 Regulations**

The Governor-General may make regulations, not inconsistent with this Act, prescribing matters:

- (a) required or permitted by this Act to be prescribed; or
- (b) necessary or convenient to be prescribed for carrying out or giving effect to this Act;

and, in particular:

- (c) prescribing the manner for the determination of the weight or the volume of prescribed goods;
- (d) prescribing the form of warrant for the purposes of section 15; and
- (e) providing for the remission or refund of charge in specified circumstances.
- Note: Regulations may prescribe something by class (see subsection 13(3) of the *Legislation Act 2003*).

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

#### Endnotes

#### **Endnote 1—About the endnotes**

The endnotes provide information about this compilation and the compiled law.

The following endnotes are included in every compilation:

Endnote 1—About the endnotes

Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

Endnote 3—Legislation history

Endnote 4—Amendment history

#### Abbreviation key—Endnote 2

The abbreviation key sets out abbreviations that may be used in the endnotes.

#### Legislation history and amendment history—Endnotes 3 and 4

Amending laws are annotated in the legislation history and amendment history.

The legislation history in endnote 3 provides information about each law that has amended (or will amend) the compiled law. The information includes commencement details for amending laws and details of any application, saving or transitional provisions that are not included in this compilation.

The amendment history in endnote 4 provides information about amendments at the provision (generally section or equivalent) level. It also includes information about any provision of the compiled law that has been repealed in accordance with a provision of the law.

#### **Editorial changes**

The *Legislation Act 2003* authorises First Parliamentary Counsel to make editorial and presentational changes to a compiled law in preparing a compilation of the law for registration. The changes must not change the effect of the law. Editorial changes take effect from the compilation registration date.

If the compilation includes editorial changes, the endnotes include a brief outline of the changes in general terms. Full details of any changes can be obtained from the Office of Parliamentary Counsel.

#### **Misdescribed amendments**

A misdescribed amendment is an amendment that does not accurately describe the amendment to be made. If, despite the misdescription, the amendment can

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

14

Compilation date: 5/3/16

be given effect as intended, the amendment is incorporated into the compiled law and the abbreviation "(md)" added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

If a misdescribed amendment cannot be given effect as intended, the abbreviation "(md not incorp)" is added to the details of the amendment included in the amendment history.

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Registered: 22/4/16

### Endnote 2—Abbreviation key

ad = added or inserted	o = order(s)
am = amended	Ord = Ordinance
amdt = amendment	orig = original
c = clause(s)	<pre>par = paragraph(s)/subparagraph(s)</pre>
C[x] = Compilation No. x	/sub-subparagraph(s)
Ch = Chapter(s)	pres = present
def = definition(s)	prev = previous
Dict = Dictionary	(prev) = previously
disallowed = disallowed by Parliament	Pt = Part(s)
Div = Division(s)	r = regulation(s)/rule(s)
ed = editorial change	reloc = relocated
exp = expires/expired or ceases/ceased to have	renum = renumbered
effect	rep = repealed
F = Federal Register of Legislation	rs = repealed and substituted
gaz = gazette	s = section(s)/subsection(s)
LA = Legislation Act 2003	Sch = Schedule(s)
LIA = Legislative Instruments Act 2003	Sdiv = Subdivision(s)
(md) = misdescribed amendment can be given	SLI = Select Legislative Instrument
effect	SR = Statutory Rules
(md not incorp) = misdescribed amendment	Sub-Ch = Sub-Chapter(s)
cannot be given effect	SubPt = Subpart(s)
mod = modified/modification	<u>underlining</u> = whole or part not
No. = Number(s)	commenced or to be commenced

16

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Export Inspection Charge Collection Act 1985	27, 1985	22 May 1985	1 July 1985	
Export Inspection Charges (Miscellaneous Amendments) Act 1985	115, 1985	21 Oct 1985	1 Jan 1986 ( <i>see</i> <i>Gazette</i> 1985, No. S560)	_
Statute Law (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1987	141, 1987	18 Dec 1987	s. 3: 1 Mar 1988 ( <i>see Gazette</i> 1988 No. S59)	s. 5(1)
Export Inspection Charges Collection Amendment Act 1987	158, 1987	26 Dec 1987	15 Feb 1990 (see s. 2 and <i>Gazette</i> 1990, No. S32)	_
Export Inspection Charges Collection Amendment Act 1988	25, 1988	11 May 1988	1 Jan 1989 ( <i>see</i> s. 2 and <i>Gazette</i> 1988, No. S399)	s. 7
Export Inspection Charges Laws Amendment Act 1993	101, 1993	22 Dec 1993	1 Jan 1994	_
Criminal Code Amendment (Theft, Fraud, Bribery and Related Offences) Act 2000	137, 2000	24 Nov 2000	Sch 2 (items 190, 191, 418, 419): 24 May 2001 (s 2(3))	Sch. 2 (items 418, 419)
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry Legislation Amendment (Application of Criminal Code) Act 2001	115, 2001	18 Sept 2001	16 Oct 2001	s. 4
Statute Law Revision Act 2011	5, 2011	22 Mar 2011	Schedule 7 (item 57): 19 Apr 2011	_

## Endnote 3—Legislation history

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

17

#### Endnotes

Act	Number and year	Assent	Commencement	Application, saving and transitional provisions
Statute Law Revision Act 2013	103, 2013	29 June 2013	Schedule 1 (items 36–46): Royal Assent	Sch. 1 (item 46)
Export Legislation Amendment Act 2014	37, 2014	25 June 2014	Sch 1 (items 5–27): 25 June 2014 (s 2)	Sch 1 (items 26, 27)
Acts and Instruments (Framework Reform) (Consequential Provisions) Act 2015	126, 2015	10 Sept 2015	Sch 1 (item 206): 5 Mar 2016 (s 2(1) item 2)	_
Statute Law Revision Act (No. 2) 2015	145, 2015	12 Nov 2015	Sch 3 (item 15): 10 Dec 2015 (s 2(1) item 7)	_

### Endnote 3—Legislation history

18

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

## Endnote 4—Amendment history

Provision affected	How affected
Title	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 158, 1987; No. 101, 1993
s. 1	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 101, 1993
s. 2	am. No. 115, 1985
s. 3	rs. No. 115, 1985
	am. No. 158, 1987; No. 25, 1988; No. 101, 1993; No. 5, 2011; No 37, 2014
s. 3A	ad. No. 115, 1985
	rs. No. 25, 1988
	am No 37, 2014
s. 3B	ad. No. 115, 1985
	rs No 145, 2015
s. 3C	ad. No. 115, 2001
s. 4	am. No. 115, 1985
	rs. No. 158, 1987
s. 5	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 101, 1993; No 37, 2014
s. 6	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 141, 1987
	rs No 37, 2014
s. 6A	ad. No. 115, 1985
	am. No. 141, 1987; No. 25, 1988
	rs No 37, 2014
s. 7	am. No. 115, 1985
	rs. No. 141, 1987
Heading to s. 8	am. No. 103, 2013
s. 8	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 103, 2013
s. 9	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 25, 1988; No. 115, 2001; No 37, 2014
s. 10	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 137, 2000; No. 115, 2001
s. 11	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 141, 1987; No. 103, 2013
s. 12	am. No. 115, 1985; No 37, 2014
s. 12A	ad. No. 115, 1985

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16

19

#### Endnotes

Provision affected	How affected
	rep. No. 158, 1987
	ad. No. 101, 1993
Heading to s. 14	am. No. 103, 2013
s. 14	am. No. 141, 1987; No. 103, 2013
s. 15	am. No. 115, 1985; No. 115, 2001; No. 103, 2013
s. 16	am. No. 101, 1993
s. 16A	ad. No. 115, 1985
s. 16B	ad. No. 101, 1993
	rs No 37, 2014
s 17	am No 37, 2014; No 126, 2015

20

Export Inspection and Meat Charges Collection Act 1985

Compilation No. 9

Compilation date: 5/3/16